
 

DEPARTMENTS: AREA CODE (707)  

ADMINISTRATION 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 0  �  PLANNING 4 2 1 - 7 3 3 5  �  BUILDING 4 2 1 - 7 3 1 0  �  FINANCE 4 2 1 - 7 3 2 0  

FIRE 4 2 5 - 9 1 3 3  �  RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES 4 2 1 - 7 2 0 0  �  POLICE 4 2 1 - 7 3 7 3  �  PUBLIC WORKS 4 2 1 - 7 3 4 0  

SUCCESSOR AGENCY 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 9  FAX 4 2 1 - 7 3 6 6  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

Pedro “Pete” M. Sanchez, Mayor 

Mike Hudson, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Jane Day 

Sam Derting 

Michael A. Segala 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

First and Third Tuesday 

Every Month 
 

 

 

A G E N D A 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL  

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL ACTING AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY, 

AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 2, 2012 

7:00 P.M. 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 

(Next Ord. No. – 722) 

 (Next City Council Res. No. 2012 – 74) 

Next Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency Res. No. SA2012 – 14) 

 (Next Housing Authority Res. No. HA2012 – 04) 

ROLL CALL 

Council / Board Members 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Invocation 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
(Requests by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this 

agenda per California Government Code §54954.3 allowing 3 minutes to each speaker). 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION  
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers / Boardmembers 

should be identified at this time.) 

PRESENTATIONS/APPOINTMENTS 
(Presentations, Awards, Proclamations, Appointments).      

1. Presentation of a Proclamation to Gerry Raycraft, Boardmember, Solano-Napa Habitat for 

Humanity, Proclaiming October 1, 2012 as World Habitat Day.   

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency 

2. Agency Receive and Accept the Due Diligence Review of the Low and Moderate Income 

Housing Fund – (Garben).   

 



October 2, 2012 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 2 

 

 

Joint City Council / Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency 

3. Council/Agency Approval of the Minutes of the Regular and/or Special Meetings of the 

Suisun City Council and Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency held on 

September 18, 2012 – (Hobson).   

GENERAL BUSINESS 

City Council 

4. Awarding Construction Contract for Senior Center Reroof Project – (Kasperson). 

a. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2012-___:  Declaring the Bid of Northwest Roofing 

& Waterproofing, Inc. for the Senior Center Reroof Project as Non-Responsive. 

b. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2012-___:  Authorizing the City Manager to Enter 

into a Construction Contract on the City’s behalf with Solano County Roofing Inc. for the 

Senior Center Reroof Project. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:   

REPORTS:  (Informational items only.) 

5. City Manager/Executive Director/Staff 

a. Update on Redevelopment, AB 1484 and League of California Cities Law Suit – 

(Garben). 

6. Mayor/Council - Chair/Boardmembers 

ADJOURNMENT 

A complete packet of information containing staff reports and exhibits related to each item for the open session of 

this meeting, and provided to the City Council, are available for public review at least 72 hours prior to a Council 

/Agency/Authority Meeting at Suisun City Hall 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City.  Agenda related writings or 

documents provided to a majority of the Council/Board/Commissioners less than 72 hours prior to a 

Council/Agency/Authority meeting regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection 

during normal business hours.  An agenda packet is also located at the entrance to the Council Chambers during the 

meeting for public review.  The City may charge photocopying charges for requested copies of such documents. 

 

PLEASE NOTE: 
1. The City Council/Agency/Authority hopes to conclude its public business by 11:00 P.M.  Ordinarily, no new items will be taken up after 

the 11:00 P.M. cutoff and any items remaining will be agendized for the next meeting.  The agendas have been prepared with the hope that 

all items scheduled will be discussed within the time allowed. 

2. Suisun City is committed to providing full access to these proceedings; individuals with special needs may call 421-7300. 

3. Agendas are posted at least 72 hours in advance of regular meetings at: 

City Hall Fire Station Senior Center 

701 Civic Center Boulevard 621 Pintail Drive 318 Merganser Drive 

 





PREPARED BY:  Jason Garben, Economic Development Director 

REVIEWED/APPROVED BY: Suzanne Bragdon, Executive Director 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  October 2, 2012 

 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY AGENDA ITEM:  Receive and Accept the Due Diligence Review of 

the Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:  None.   
 

BACKGROUND:  Assembly Bill 1484 (AB 1484), the redevelopment budget trailer bill 

amending Assembly Bill x1 26 (ABx1 26), was signed into law on June 27, 2012. AB 1484 

requires the Successor Agency to hire an outside qualified licensed accountant to perform a 

comprehensive “Due Diligence Review” of the Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund.  The 

accounting firm hired must be approved by the County Auditor-Controller (Auditor-Controller). 

The purpose of the review is to determine the unobligated fund balance that will be available for 

distribution to taxing entities. 

AB 1484 requires the Due Diligence Review of the Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund be 

submitted to the Oversight Board, the County Auditor-Controller, the State Controller’s Office and 

the State Department of Finance (DOF) by October 1, 2012.  The Oversight Board has until 

October 15, 2012, to review, approve and transmit to the DOF and the Auditor-Controller a 

determination of the amount of cash and cash equivalents available for disbursement to taxing 

entities. 

The DOF review of the determination provided by the Oversight Board will be completed no later 

than November 9, 2012. Any decision to overturn determinations made by the Oversight Board to 

authorize a Successor Agency to retain assets or funds will be conveyed to the Oversight Board 

and Successor Agency via a letter.  Successor Agencies have five days from receipt of the 

decisions to request “meet and confer.” 

STAFF REPORT:  In FY 2010-11, the City and Redevelopment Agency retained the accounting 

firm of Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Company, LLP (VTD) to perform the annual audit for the City and 

the Agency.  Since VTD is familiar with the assets and financial components of the Successor 

Agency, and is familiar with and participated in the development of the procedures to complete the 

Due Diligence Reviews of the Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund, the County Auditor-

Controller was requested to approve, and did approve VTD to perform the Low and Moderate 

Income Housing Fund Due Diligence Review on behalf of the Successor Agency. 

As of this writing, a draft Due Diligence Review of the Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund 

was complete, with a final expected to be available by the October 1, 2012, deadline.  The final 

copy will be distributed or available for review with the City Clerk upon publication.  There is no 

action of the Successor Agency Board required; however, the information is provided to the 

Successor Agency Board in order to ensure transparency of the process. 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the Successor Agency receive and accept the 

Due Diligence Review of the Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund. 

 
 



 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

1. Draft Due Diligence Review of the Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund 



amajor
Text Box
DRAFT























M I N U T E S 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL ACTING AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY, 

AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 18, 2012 

7:00 P.M. 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 

ROLL CALL 

Mayor / Chairman Sanchez called the Meeting to order at 7:00 PM with Council / Board 

Members Day, Derting, Hudson, Segala and Sanchez present.   

Pledge of Allegiance was led by Council / Board Member Hudson. 

Invocation was given by City Manager Bragdon.   

PUBLIC COMMENT 
(Requests by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this 

agenda per California Government Code §54954.3 allowing 3 minutes to each speaker). 

George Guynn suggested council members should report on attending conferences.  

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION  - None 
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers / Boardmembers 

should be identified at this time.) 

PRESENTATIONS/APPOINTMENTS 
(Presentations, Awards, Proclamations, Appointments). 

1. Presentation of a Proclamation to Fire Department Proclaiming September 2012 as “National 

Preparedness Month”.  

Mayor Sanchez read and Council Member Hudson presented the proclamation to Fire 

Captain Bounds who reported that citizens in time of an emergency or disaster should be 

prepared, have supplies, have a plan, be informed, and be involved. 

2. Presentationon the “Christmas on the Waterfront” Event and Funding by the Community 

Services Foundation – (Jessop).  

Parks and Recreation Director Jessop stated Community Services Foundation is committed to 

continuing the event but on a smaller scale which will be funded by community fund raisers 

and explained some of the things being cut were fireworks, ice skating rink, Christmas 

village and banners on Sunset. 

 



September 18, 2012 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 2 

 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Joint City Council / Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency / Housing Authority 

3. Council/Agency/Authority Review and Accept the Investment Report for the Quarter Ending 

June 30, 2012 – (Anderson).   

4. Council/Agency/Authority Approval of the Minutes of the Regular and/or Special Meetings 

of the Suisun City Council,Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency, and Housing 

Authority  held on July 19, 2012, August 14, 2012 and August 21, 2012– (Hobson).   

Joint City Council / Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency 

5. Council/Agency Approval of the August 2012 Payroll Warrants in the amount of 

$497,475.43.  Council/Agency Approval of the August 2012 Payable Warrants in the amount 

of $1,509,706.93 – (Finance).    

Motioned by Council / Board Member Day and seconded by Council / Board Member 

Derting to approve the Consent Calendar. Motion carried unanimously 

GENERAL BUSINESS 

City Council 

6. Awarding Construction Contract for Senior Center Reroof Project – (Moirano). 

a. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2012-__:  Declaring the Bid of Northwest Roofing 

& Waterproofing Inc. for the Senior Center Reroof Project as Non-Responsive. 

b. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2012-___:  Authorizing the City Manager to Enter 

into a Construction Contract on the City’s behalf with Solano County Roofing Inc. for the 

Senior Center Re-Roof Project.  

Morgan Nolte, of the Roofers and Waterproofers Union 81, stated agreement to award 

Solano County Roofing, Inc. because Solano was the only bidder who abided by the rules 

of the bid.  

The apparent low bidder, Brian Williams of Northwest Roofing and Waterproofing, Inc. 

protested the awarding of the bid to the other bidder on the sole basis of the Class B 

contractor’s license requirement.  

Motioned by Council Member Hudson and seconded by Council Member Derting to 

delay the awarding of the bid to a later date. Motion carried unanimously. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:   

REPORTS:  (Informational items only.) 

7. City Manager/Executive Director/Staff 

8. Mayor/Council -Chair/Boardmembers 

Council / Board Member Segala requested a legal report on the status of Redevelopment law as it 

would pertain to us today, spoke about the homeless theft of political signs, and asked how long 

the City is required to keep the personal property of the homeless. 



September 18, 2012 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 3 

 

 

Council / Board Member Hudson reported on shopping carts on Hwy 12 and across from Joe 

Nelson Community Center, expressed concern about paying for temporary parking lots on Main 

Stree, and praised the Leavin grand opening.  

Mayor Sanchez advised he had officiated his fifth wedding on the waterfront  and attended a 

cultural arts event in Fairfield along with Assembly Member Yamada, Mayor Price and County 

Supervisor Spering. 

Council / Board Member Day thanked the police department for helping an 88-year old lady find 

her dog an is in full support of keeping our own police department. 

Council / Board Member Derting stated the Leavin Grand Opening was wonderful and well 

attended.  

CLOSED SESSION   

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54950 the Suisun City Council and Successor will 

hold a Closed Session for the purpose of: 

City Council  

9.   Conference With Legal Council – Anticipated Litigation. 

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(b): One 

potential case.  

7:51 PM – Mayor Sanchez recessed the City Council to Closed Session. 

CONVENE OPEN SESSION 

Announcement of Actions Taken, if any, in Closed Session. 

8:20 PM – Mayor Sanchez reconvened the City Council and stated no decisions were made 

in Closed Session. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business, Mayor Sanchez adjourned the City Council meeting at 8:20 PM. 

 

_________________________ 

Linda Hobson, CMC 

City Clerk 

 

 



 

PREPARED BY: Daniel Kasperson, Building & Public Works Director 

REVIEWED/APPROVED BY:  Suzanne Bragdon, City Manager  

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 2, 2012 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Awarding Construction Contract for Senior Center Reroof Project: 

a. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2012-___:  Declaring the bid of Northwest 

Roofing & Waterproofing Inc. for the Senior Center Reroof Project as non-

responsive. 

b. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2012-___:  Authorizing the City Manager to 

Enter into a Construction Contract on the City’s behalf with Solano County Roofing 

Inc. for the Senior Center Reroof Project. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

FISCAL IMPACT:  A CDBG Grant of $685,000 has been approved and awarded for the 

Suisun City Senior Center Rehabilitation.  The Senior Center Reroof Project is the first phase of 

the larger project. The contract award of $55,328 plus 10% contingency is within the available 

budget.  There is no impact on the General Fund.  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

BACKGROUND:  October 19, 2010, the City received notice that we were awarded a $685,000 

CDBG Grant to make improvements to the Suisun City Senior Center.  This CDBG grant was 

approved for a comprehensive rehabilitation of the Senior Center with the primary goals of this 

project to include: a new roof, a new commercial grade kitchen, safety code upgrades, energy 

efficiency improvements, ADA improvements, and other building and site improvements.  In 

March 2011 a contract with Moniz Architecture was awarded for the completion of construction 

documents for this project.  Subsequently plans and specifications were completed and the project 

was put out to bid.   

 

On June 19, 2012 bids for the construction of the complete project were opened and all bids 

received were over budget.  Furthermore, staff found irregularities in the bids.  All bids were 

rejected.  It was determined that it was in the best interest of the City to revise the construction 

documents to clarify certain details and provide for cost savings.  To facilitate this, staff 

recommended that the project be divided into two phases.  Phase I would include the roof and 

related items.  Phase II would include the remainder of the project.  Phase I is to be completed 

immediately during the dry season and would provide for a weather tight shell for the completion of 

Phase II of the project.  Phase II will be re-designed and put out to bid so that construction of Phase 

II can start immediately following the holiday season.  This schedule will allow for the completion 

of the project within grant deadlines. 

 

On September 18, 2012 staff recommendation for the contract award for the roofing portion of the 

project was brought before Council for approval.  At this meeting, representatives from Northwest 

Roofing & Waterproofing, Inc. (Northwest Roofing) were in attendance.  One representative spoke 

to the Council and expressed several concerns over the project being awarded to Solano County 

Roofing, Inc.  Northwest Roofing submitted a document to Council (Attachment 1) and made a 



verbal claim while at the podium addressing Council.  A summary of their primary concerns are 

listed below: 

 Northwest Roofing claiming they received no timely notice of the protest by Solano County 

Roofing. 

 Northwest Roofing claiming that a Class B License was not required for this project per the 

bid package. 

 Northwest Roofing verbalized that because there were only two bidders for the project that 

once their bid was thrown out, there was only one remaining bidder and this made it a non-

competitive bid situation.   

 

Staff’s answer to these issues is included below. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

STAFF REPORT:  As stated in the Staff Report for the September 18
, 
2012 meeting, which is 

attached in its entirety as Attachment 2, a revised set of project construction documents were 

prepared that included only the work for Phase I that was titled the Senior Center Reroof Project 

(Reroof Project).  The Reroof Project was properly advertised and bids were opened at 2:00 PM 

on August 21, 2012.  Bids from two contractors were received and the results are as follows: 

 

 

Company Total Bid 

Northwest Roofing & Waterproofing, Inc. $55,328 

Solano County Roofing Inc. $55,900 

 

As part of the bid results, two protests about the bid results were received.  Those two protests 

were discussed in the September 18
th

 Staff Report. Again, this information can be reviewed in 

Attachment 2. 

 

Northwest Roofing expressed concerns at the September 18
th

 meeting.  Details of the concerns 

they submitted in writing available for review in Attachment 1.  A summary of their concerns 

and staff’s responses to those concerns are listed below: 

 

1. Northwest Roofing claims that they did not receive timely notice of the protest from 

Solano County Roofing, Inc.  

 

STAFF’S RESPONSE:  Staff investigated Northwest Roofing’s claim that they did 

not receive timely notice of the protest from Solano County Roofing, Inc.  In 

discussions with Solano County Roofing, Inc., they clarified that they did make a 

reasonable attempt to deliver a protest letter to Northwest Roofing.  Proof of a 

reasonably delivery attempt is in the form of a USPS Certified Letter receipt 

(Attachment 1a).  Staff has confirmed that Solano County Roofing’s letter delivery 

attempt was sent to the correct and legal address for Northwest Roofing.  This is in 

addition to the fax that was sent to Northwest Roofing on August 28, 2012 (Solano 

County Roofing’s cover sheet), as shared at the September 18, 2012 City Council 

meeting.   

 



 

2. Northwest Roofing claims that a Class B License should not have been required as 

part of the bid specifications. 

 

STAFF RESPONSE: The bid package clearly identified the requirement of a Class B 

License.  Additionally, as part of the bid package, all bidders received detailed written 

information that outlines how a bidder can go about expressing a protest over the bid 

package.  Section 2 and Section 14 of the bid package outlines the steps for 

submitting a timely bid protest (Attachment 1b and 1c).  Northwest Roofing had 

concerns with the bid document, and did not submit to the City such concerns prior to 

bid opening as directed in the bid documents.  Section 2 (attachment 1b) indicates 

that any protest to the bid package be submitted seven business days prior to the bid 

opening. 

 

Secondly, the scope of work in the bid package goes beyond a simple roof 

replacement.  Any portion of non-roof specific repairs, including dry rot repairs, that 

are in excess of one-half of 1% of the total project create an instance where the 

contractor performing the repairs needs a license beyond a Class C-39 License.  Such 

is the case with this project.  Northwest Roofing has a letter from the California State 

License Board stating that a Class C-39 License could have been an acceptable 

License for this project, however, there is no mention in the Board’s letter of the dry 

rot repairs that will be needed to complete this project.  Therefore, requirement of a 

Class B License is appropriate for this project.  

 

 

3. Northwest Roofing verbally stated at the Council meeting that because there was only 

one other bidding contractor for the job that if their bid was thrown out, it created a 

non-competitive bidding situation and that Solano County Roofing, Inc.’s bid should 

have been disqualified.   

 

STAFF RESPONSE: The bid package was advertised as required.  The City allowed 

the legal allotted time for bid submissions.  Despite only receiving two bids the bid 

process is still considered to be legal and competitive.  The number of responding 

bidders is irrelevant as long as the City has followed the correct and legal guidelines 

for bidding the project.   

 

In conclusion, staff has considered the concerns raised by Northwest Roofing and reviewed the 

apparent low bid submitted by Northwest Roofing and found it to be non-responsive because it 

does not list a Class B Contractor’s License as required.  The staff recommendation is that the 

Council approve the rejection of the bid from Northwest Roofing as being non-responsive. 

 

Staff has reviewed the next low bidder’s proposal and bid documents and has determined that the 

bid submitted by Solano County Roofing, Inc. is responsive and that Solano County Roofing is a 

responsible bidder.  Solano County Roofing, Inc. possesses both Class B and a Class C-39 

License.  Both bids fall within the available project budget.  The continued staff recommendation 

is to award the Reroof Project to Solano County Roofing, Inc. 



______________________________________________________________________________

RECOMMENDATION:   

a. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2012-___:  Declaring the bid of Northwest Roofing 

& Waterproofing Inc. for the Senior Center Reroof Project as non-responsive. 

b. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2012-___:  Authorizing the City Manager to Enter 

into a Construction Contract on the City’s behalf with Solano County Roofing Inc. for the 

Senior Center Reroof Project. 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Copy of Document Submitted by Northwest Roofing to City Council at the September 18, 

2012 meeting regarding their protest.  Copy of USPS Certified Delivery Receipt from 

Solano County Roofing along with supporting documents: 

a. Copy of USPS Certified Letter Receipt – Response to Issue #1. 

b.   Copy of Section 2 of the Instructions to Bidder Portion of the Project Bid Package 

– Interpretation or Correction of Contract Details. 

c.   Copy of Section 14 of the Instructions to Bidder Portion of the Project Bid Package 

– Bid Protests – Responds to Issue #2 – Necessity of a Class B License. 

2. Complete copy of Staff Report and Supporting Attachments from the September 18, 2012 

meeting. 

3. Resolution No. 2012-___:  Declaring the bid of Northwest Roofing & Waterproofing Inc. 

for the Senior Center Reroof Project as non-responsive. 

4. Resolution No. 2012-___:  Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into a Construction 

Contract on the City’s behalf with Solano County Roofing Inc. for the Senior Center 

Reroof Project. 

 





























































RESOLUTION NO. 2012 - ____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

DECLARING THE BID OF NORTHWEST ROOFING & WATERPROOFING INC. 

FOR THE SENIOR CENTER REROOF PROJECT AS NON-RESPONSIVE 

 

WHEREAS, on October 19, 2010, the City received notice that we were awarded a 

$685,000 CDBG Grant to make improvements to the Suisun City Senior Center for a 

comprehensive rehabilitation of the Senior Center with the primary goal of this project to include 

a new roof, a new commercial grade kitchen, safety code upgrades, energy efficiency 

improvements, ADA improvements, and other building and site improvements; and 

  

 WHEREAS, staff has prepared plans, specifications and an estimate for bidding Phase I 

of this project which includes the new roof and other work to facilitate the roofing (Phase I); and  

  

 WHEREAS, two bid proposals for Phase I were received by the City before 2:00 pm on 

August 21, 2012, and were opened and read; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Northwest Roofing & Waterproofing Inc. (Northwest Roofing) was the 

apparent low bidder providing a bid of $55,328 for the Phase I Base Bid and Solano County 

Roofing, Inc. (Solano County Roofing) providing a bid of $55,900; and 

 

 WHEREAS, formal bid protests were received from Solano County Roofing Inc. and 

the United Union of Roofers Waterproofers and Allied Workers with those protests being 

received timely and correct as to form; and 

 

 WHEREAS, included in those protests was the allegation that Northwest Roofing did 

not possess a Class B Contractor’s License as required in the Bid Specifications; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Northwest Roofing submitted a bid protest, after the opening of bids, 

protesting the requirement in the bid package of a Class B license, among other things; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 2.2 of the bid documents required that "[i]n the event Bidder has 

any question as to the meaning of any part of the Contract Documents, or Bidder finds any 

error, omission, inconsistency, or ambiguity in the Contract Documents, Bidder shall make a 

written request for clarification prior to submitting its Bid. Requests for clarification or 

interpretation of the Contract Documents shall be addressed only to Kevin Moirano at fax: 

707-429-3758 or via email at kmoirano@suisun.com. It shall be the Bidder’s responsibility to 

ensure that any such request is submitted to the City in a timely manner to allow sufficient 

time for the City to issue written Addenda. Furthermore, any request must be submitted no 

later than seven business days prior to the date of the Bid Opening."  

  

mailto:kmoirano@suisun.com


WHEREAS, Northwest Roofing & Waterproofing did not make a written request for 

clarification prior to submitting its Bid.  Northwest Roofing’s objections were made, for the 

very first time, after the bids were opened, as described in detail below.  Allowing 

these untimely objections to be accepted now, as if they were made before the bids were 

opened, would compromise the integrity of the bidding process.     

  

 WHEREAS, Northwest Roofing also claimed for the first time after the bids were 

opened that a Class B License should not have been required as part of the bid 

specifications.  A Class B License was included as part of the bid specifications due to the 

percentage of dry rot repair associated with this project.  Any portion of non-roof specific 

repairs, including dry rot repairs, that are in excess of one-half of 1% of the total project 

create an instance where the contractor performing the repairs needs a license beyond a Class 

C-39 License. While Northwest Roofing has a letter from the California State License Board 

stating that a Class C-39 License could have been acceptable, there is no mention in their 

letter of the dry rot repairs that will be needed to complete this project. Therefore, the letter 

from the State Board is deemed to be not applicable in this case and Northwest Roofing & 

Waterproofing contention is rejected.  Requirement of a Class B License for this project is 

appropriate; and 

  

WHEREAS, Finally, Northwest Roofing stated that because there was only one other 

bidding contractor for the job that if their bid was thrown out, it created a non-competitive 

bidding situation and that Solano County Roofing’s bid should have been disqualified.  The 

bid package was advertised as required.  The City allowed the legal allotted time for bid 

submissions and the process was adequate.  Northwest Roofing's contention is rejected; and  

 

 WHEREAS, for the reasons noted above, the bid specifications issued by the City 

require a Class B License, and staff has verified that Northwest Roofing does not possess a 

Class B Contractor’s License. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that that the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City declares that the bid from Northwest Roofing is non-responsive in their bid 

submitted for the Senior Center Re-Roof Project. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City duly held on Tuesday, the 2
nd

 day of October 2012, by the following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers:     

NOES: Councilmembers:     

ABSENT: Councilmembers:     

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:     

 WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 2
nd

 day of October 2012. 

 

   

 Donna Pock, CMC 

 Deputy City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NO. 2012 - ____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONSTRUCTION 

CONTRACT ON THE CITY’S BEHALF WITH SOLANO COUNTY ROOFING INC. 

FOR THE SENIOR CENTER REROOF PROJECT 

 

WHEREAS, on October 19, 2010, the City received notice that we were awarded a 

$685,000 CDBG Grant to make improvements to the Suisun City Senior Center for a 

comprehensive rehabilitation of the Senior Center with the primary goal of this project to include 

a new roof, a new commercial grade kitchen, safety code upgrades, energy efficiency 

improvements, ADA improvements, and other building and site improvements; and 

  

 WHEREAS, staff has prepared plans, specifications and an estimate for bidding Phase I 

of this project which includes the new roof and other work to facilitate the roofing (Phase I); and  

  

 WHEREAS, two bid proposals for Phase I were received by the City before 2:00 pm on 

August 21, 2012, and were opened and read; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Northwest Roofing & Waterproofing Inc. (Northwest Roofing) was the 

apparent low bidder providing a bid of $55,328 for the Phase I Base Bid and Solano County 

Roofing, Inc. (Solano County Roofing) providing a bid of $55,900; and 

 

 WHEREAS, formal bid protests were received from Solano County Roofing Inc. and 

the United Union of Roofers Waterproofers and Allied Workers with those protests being 

received timely and correct as to form; and 

 

 WHEREAS, included in those protests was the allegation that Northwest Roofing did 

not possess a Class B Contractor’s License as required in the Bid Specifications; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Northwest Roofing submitted a bid protest, after the opening of bids, 

protesting the requirement in the bid package of a Class B license, among other things; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 2.2 of the bid documents required that "[i]n the event Bidder has 

any question as to the meaning of any part of the Contract Documents, or Bidder finds any 

error, omission, inconsistency, or ambiguity in the Contract Documents, Bidder shall make a 

written request for clarification prior to submitting its Bid. Requests for clarification or 

interpretation of the Contract Documents shall be addressed only to Kevin Moirano at fax: 

707-429-3758 or via email at kmoirano@suisun.com. It shall be the Bidder’s responsibility to 

ensure that any such request is submitted to the City in a timely manner to allow sufficient 

time for the City to issue written Addenda. Furthermore, any request must be submitted no 

later than seven business days prior to the date of the Bid Opening."  

  

mailto:kmoirano@suisun.com


WHEREAS, Northwest Roofing & Waterproofing did not make a written request for 

clarification prior to submitting its Bid.  Northwest Roofing’s objections were made, for the 

very first time, after the bids were opened, as described in detail below.  Allowing 

these untimely objections to be accepted now, as if they were made before the bids were 

opened, would compromise the integrity of the bidding process.     

  

 WHEREAS, Northwest Roofing also claimed for the first time after the bids were 

opened that a Class B License should not have been required as part of the bid 

specifications.  A Class B License was included as part of the bid specifications due to the 

percentage of dry rot repair associated with this project.  Any portion of non-roof specific 

repairs, including dry rot repairs, that are in excess of one-half of 1% of the total project 

create an instance where the contractor performing the repairs needs a license beyond a Class 

C-39 License. While Northwest Roofing has a letter from the California State License Board 

stating that a Class C-39 License could have been acceptable, there is no mention in their 

letter of the dry rot repairs that will be needed to complete this project. Therefore, the letter 

from the State Board is deemed to be not applicable in this case and Northwest Roofing & 

Waterproofing contention is rejected.  Requirement of a Class B License for this project is 

appropriate; and 

  

WHEREAS, Finally, Northwest Roofing stated that because there was only one other 

bidding contractor for the job that if their bid was thrown out, it created a non-competitive 

bidding situation and that Solano County Roofing’s bid should have been disqualified.  The 

bid package was advertised as required.  The City allowed the legal allotted time for bid 

submissions and the process was adequate.  Northwest Roofing's contention is rejected; and  

 

 WHEREAS, for the reasons noted above, the bid specifications issued by the City 

require a Class B License, and staff has verified that Northwest Roofing does not possess a 

Class B Contractor’s License; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has declared the bid from Northwest Roofing to be 

Non-Responsive; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the second low bidder was Solano County Roofing Inc. having provided 

a bid of $55,900; and 

 

 WHEREAS, staff has reviewed Solano County Roofing’s cost proposal and bid 

documents and has determined that the bid submitted by Solano County Roofing is responsive 

and that Solano County Roofing is the responsible bidder. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that that the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City AUTHORIZES THE City Manager to enter into a construction contract on behalf of 

the City with Solano County Roofing, Inc. for the Senior Center Reroof Project for the contract 

cost of $55,900 and to take any and all necessary and appropriate actions to implement this 

contract.  The City Council further authorizes the City Manager to approve changes for 

contingencies as necessary up to an additional $5,590. 

 



 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City duly held on Tuesday, the 2
nd

 day of October 2012, by the following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers:     

NOES: Councilmembers:     

ABSENT: Councilmembers:     

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:     

 WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 2
nd

 day of October 2012. 

 

   

 Donna Pock, CMC 

 Deputy City Clerk 


	Agenda
	Item 1 - Proclamation
	Item 2 - Due Diligence Review
	Item 3 - Minutes
	Item 4 - Senior Center Reroof Project

